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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
WESTERN DISTRICT OF WASHIGTON 

AT SEATTLE 

FEDERAL TRADE COMMSSION, CiviINO.C 07 -17 55 gsVV 
Plaintiff 

COMPLAINT FOR INJUNCTIVE 
AND OTHER EQUITABLE 
RELIEF 

B.C. LTD. 0763496, d. a. CASH CORNER
 
SER VICES, We.; (FIIJED UNDER SEAL I
 
B.C. LTD. 0685573 , d. a. FAMY
 
CHOICE STORE, lNe.;
 
ODOW A ROLAND OKUOMOSE
 
individually and as a director of Cash Corner
 
Selvices, .Ic. , and Family Choice Store, Inc.
 
and
 
EVELYN OKUOMOSE, individually and as
 
a director of Family Choice Store, Inc.,
 

Defendants. 

Plaintiff, tbe Âé¶¹´«Ã½ Trade Commission ("FTC" ), for its complaint alleges: 

The FTC hrings this action under Scctions 13(b) and 19 of the Âé¶¹´«Ã½ Trad 

Commission Act ("FTC Act ), 15 U.S.C. 99 53(b) and 5Th, and the Telemarketing and 

Consurl1er Fraud and Abusc Prevention Act ("Telemarketing Act"), 15 US. C. 9 6101-6108 , to 

obtain temporary, preliminary, and permanent injunctive relief, rescission or reformation of 

contracts , rcslilu11on , disgorgcmcnt of i1-gotten gains, and other cquitahle relief against 
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defcndafts for acts or practices in violati011 of Seclion Sea) of the FTC Act , 15 U.S. c. 45(a), 

and in violation of the FTC's Telemarketing Sales Rule (" TSR"), 16 C. R. Par 310. 

JURISDICTION AND VENUE 

Subject matter jurisdiction is conferred upon this Court by 15 D. C. g 45(a), 

53(b), 5Th , 6102(c), and 6105(b), as wen as 28 U.S. C. 9 1331 , 1337(a), and 1345. 

Venue in the Western Distrct ofWashingtOTl is proper under 15 U.S. c. 53(b) 

and 6103(a), as well as 28 U.S.C. 9 1391(d). 

PI,AITIFF 
PlainbffÂé¶¹´«Ã½ Trae Commission is an independent agency of the United 

States Government created by statute. 15 U.S. C. 41 et seq. The FTC is charged, inter alia 

with enforcement of Section 5(a) of the FTC Act, 15 U.S. C. 45(a), which prohibits unfair and 

deceptive acts or practices in or affecting commerce. The FTC is also charged with enforcement 

ofthe Tdemarketing Act, 15 D. C. *96101-6108. Pursuant to the Telemarketing Act, the 

FTC enforces the TSR, 16 C. R. Part 310, which prohibits deceptive and abusive telemarketing 

acts or practices. The FTC is authorized to initiate federal district court proceedings in its own 

name by its designated attorneys to enjoin violations of the FTC Act and the TSR to secure 

appropriate equitable relief, including redress, restitution, and disgorgement. 

DEFENDANTS 

Primary Defendants 

Defendant B. C. Ltd. 0763496 a. Cash Corner Services, Inc. ("Cash Comer 

is a registered corporation under the laws of British Columbia, Canada. Its registered p1aec of 

business is 211-2571 Shaughnessy Street, Port CoquHlam , British Columbia. Cash Comer 

claims that i1 provides, among other things, check cashing, phone cards, and electronic money 

transfers, With respect to its money transferring services, Cash Comer is a registered 

MoneyGram agent, and previously was a registered Western Union agent. Cash Corncr 

transacts business in thls distrct and throughout the United States. 

Defendant Odowa Roland Okuomose ("Okuomosc ) is the director of Cash 

Comer. OkuOIl1ose is also a ct,rector of defet\dant B.C. Ltd. 0685573, d. a. Family Choice 
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Store, Inc. ("Family Choice ). At all times material to this complaint, aCLlng alone or in concer 

with others, he has fonnulated , direeted, controlled, or paricipated in the acts and practices of 

Cash Comer and Family Choice, inc1uding the acts and praetices set forth in this complaint. 

Okuomose transacts business in this district and throughout the United States. 

Assisting Defendants 

Defendant B.C. Ltd. 0685573, d. a. Family Cboice Store, Inc. , is a registered 

corporation under the laws of British Columbia. Its registered place of business is 10707 King 

George Highway, SUIey, British Columbia. Family Choice promotes itself 
 as a hair salon. Tn 

providing substantial assistance or support to Primar Defendants Cash Comer and Okuomose 

Family Choice transacts business in this distrct and tbroughout the United States. 

Defendant Evelyn Okuomose ("Evelyn Okuomose ) is a director of Family 

Choice. At an times material to this complaint, acting alone or in COncert with others, she has 

formulated, directed, controlled, or participated in the acts and practices of Family Choice, 

including the acts and practices set forth in this complaint. In providing substatial assistance or 

support to Primar Defendants Cash Corncr and Okuomose, Evelyn Okuomose transacts 

business in this distrct and throughout Lhe United States. 

COMMERCE 

At al1 tlmes relevant to this complait, defendants have maintained a substantial 

course ofbusiness in or affecting commerce , as "commerce" is defined in Section 4 ofthe FTC 

Act, 15 U. c. * 45­

DEFENDANTS' BUSINESS PRACTICES 

10. Since at least July 2006 , Primary Defendants Okuomose and Cash Corner, 

directly or through their agents, have engaged in a deceptive seheme to induce consumers in the 

United States to pay thousands of dollars to Priniary Defendants in connection with a purpolied 

lottery, prize promotion, or other game of chance. 

I I. Using a varety of purport cd lottery or sweepstakes names - induding 

Califo1Tia State Lottery, North Star Cash Lottery," and " Blueplint International" - Primar 
Defendants or their agents have sent consumers l(;tters congratulating them on winning a 
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substantial lottery or sweepstakes prize, ranging from $250 000 to $750,000. Along with the 

letters, consumers receive what purport to be post-dated checks, ranging from $2 500-$3,800 

ostensibly (lrawn on accounts at legitimate bans, including but not limited to Enterrise Bank 

American First National Ban, and Key Bank. 

12. The letter states that the check is being sent to help consumers pay for 

insurance, delivery and adminstrtion fees;' " governent elearance fees " taes, or other fees 

that the eonsumer must pay before he or she can receive the promised prize. The sum to be paid 

tyically ranges between one thousand and several thousand dollars m usual1y Jess th the total 

amount of the check. The letter provides a telephone number and directs the consumer to call a 

claims manager, investment manager " or other named individual to arrange payment and 

start the claims process for the consumer s winnings. 

13. Some letters warn consumers that if they do not respond within the required time 

frame.. often ten days from receipt of the letter - their file wil be closed and all ftmds win be 

forfeited. The letters furter advise consumers to keep the award "absolutely confidential." 

14. When consumers call the telephone number provided, Prmar Defendants or 

their te1emarketers reiterate that the consumer bas won a substantiallottery or similar prize, and 

that the check is intended to defray the cost of the fees or taxes the consumer must pay before 

receiving his Or her wlIllings. Primar Defendants or their telemarketers instrct consumers to 

dep(Jsit the ehcck and then tranfer payment for the fees or taxes thugh MoneyGram to a 

pecifie individual at a paricular address. While Primary Defendants or their telemarketers 

provide consunlers with dj fferent named individuals to whom payment is to be sent, the 

payments are all routed to Cash Comer and are ultimately deposited into the bank accounts of 

thc Primary and Assisting Defendants. Tn some instances , Primar Defendanls or their 

telcmarketers initiate follow-up contact with consumcrs and request and receive additional 

paynlents. 

15. Primar Defendants or their telemarkcters also cold-call consumers claiming they 

have won a multi-million dollar cash prize in a lottery or pIlze eontesL Primary Defendants or 

their telemarketers tcll consumers that they must first pay insurance or other fees in order to 
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prize and instruct consumers to pay hy mailing cashier s checks or international 

money orders to a paricular mail box drop in Burnaby, B.c. Primar Defendants or their 

telemarketing agents sometimes provide consumers wHh djtIerent names of individttals to 

whom payment should be made. At olher times, they direct consumers to leave the "pay to 

section of the money orders blan. Regardless the paym.ents are ultimately deposited into the 

Primary and Assisting Defendants ' ban accounts. In some instances, Primar Defendants 

their telemarketers initiate tollow-up contact with consumers and request and reccive additional 

payments. in at least several instances, consumers have paid over $10 000 to receive their prize. 

l6. Consumers who transmit payment by MoneyGram or by mail, as instructed hy 

Primary Defendants or thcir telemarketers, do not receive any prize winnings. In addition, those 

who deposit the checks they received later lear that those checks are counterfeit. Consumers 

therefore lose the money they have paid, along with MoneyGram transmittl fees and bank fees 

associated with depositing a counterfeit check. 

collect their 


17. Although Primar Defendats lease business space for Cash Corner in Port 

Coquitam, Primar Defendants or their agents operate mainly out of Assisting Defendants 

Family Choice hair salon located in Surrey, B.C.. with Assisting Defendants ' knowledge and 

acquiescence. Primar defendant Roland Okuomosc and his wife, assisting defendant Evelyn 

Oku()mose, are the sole directors of Family Choice and both arc signatories on the Family 

Choice ban accounL Prar Defendants also deposit a significant amount of lild.. received 

ITom consumers in connection with the scheme into the Family Choice bank account with 

Assisting Defendants ' knowledge and acquiescence. 

VIOLATIONS OF 
 THE FTC ACT 

18. Section 5(a) of the FTC Act, 15 U. c. g 45(a), prohibits unfair or deceptive acts 

or practices in or affecting commerce. 

COUNT ONE 

19. In numerous instances, in connection with telemarketing a lottery, prize 

promotion, or other game or chal1ce, Primar De1endants have represented, expressly or by 
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implication, directly or thrugh their agents, that consumer have won and wil receive a large 

cash award if they pay a tax or oiler fee. 

2Q, In truth and in fact, consumers have not won a large cash award and those who 

pay the requ.ested tax or fee do not receive a large cash award. 

21. Therefore, the representations set forth in paragraph 19 above are false and 

misleading and constitute deceptive acts or practices 
 in violation of Section Sea) of the FTC Act. 

15 U. 45(a).c. 

COUNT TWO 

22. In numerous intances, in connection with telemarketing a lottery, prize 

promotion, or other game of chance, Primary Defendants have represented, expressly or hy 

implication , directly or through their agents, that the check consumers reeeive is a negotiable 

bank draft or ehcck. 

23. In truth and in fact, the check consumers receive is not a negotiable bank draft or 

c:heck. 

24, Therefore, the representation set forth in pargraph 22 above is false and 

misleadng and constitutes a deceptive act or practice in violation of Section 5(a) of the FTC 

Act. 15 US. 45(a).c. 

VIOLATIONS OF THE TELEMARKETING SALES RULE 

25. Congress directed the Âé¶¹´«Ã½ Trade Commission to prescribe mles prohibiting 

abusive and deceptive telemarketing acts or practices pursuant to the Telemarketing Act. 15 

u.s. c. 6101-6108. On August 16; 1995, the FTC promulgated the TSR , 16 C. R. Part 310 

i:nd has subsequently amended it. 

26. The Prmary Defendants are "sellers" or "te1emarketers" engaged in tile 

telemarketing" of "prizc promotions" as those tem15 are defined in the TSR. 16 C. R. 

31 O.2(z), (bb), (cc), and (y). 
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27. The TSR prohibits seller and telemarketers from misrepresenting, directly or by 

implication, in the sale of goods or services any material aspect of a prize promotion. 16 C.F. 

g 310.3(a)(2)(v). 

28. The TSR; as amended, also establishes a "Do Not Call" registry (the "National 

Do Not Call Registr" or " Registry ), maintained by the FTC, of consumers who do not wish to 

receive certain types of telemarketing calls. Consumers can register their telephone numbers on 

the Registry without charge either thwugh a toll-free telephone can or over the Intcrnet at 

rlO1lOtcal/.go \l. 

29. Since October 17 , 2003, sellers and telemarketers subject to the FTC' 

jurisdiction have been prohibited from ca11ng numbers on the Registry in violation of the TSR. 

16 C. R. * 310.4(b)(1)(ii)(B). 

30. The TSR also prohibits persons from providing substantial assistance or support 

to any seller or telcmarketer where the person knows or consciously avoids knowing that the 

seHer or telemarkctcr is engaged in any act or practice that violatcs Section 310.3(a) of the TSR. 

16 C.F. R. * 31 O.3(b). 

31. The Assisting Defendants are "persons" as that term is defined in the TSR 

R. * 31O.2(v). 

32. Pursuant to Section 3(c) of the Telemarketing Aet 15 US.C. 6102(c), and 

Section 18(d)(3) of the FTC Act, t 5 D. C. 9 57a(d)(3), a violation of the TSR constitutes an 

unfair or deceptive act or practice in or affecting commcrce, in violation of Section 5(a) of the 

fTC Act. 15 U. C. g 45(a). 

COUN THREE
 

33. Tn numerous instances, in conneetion with telemarketing a pri e promotion 

Primar Defendants have misrepresented, either expressly or by implication, directly or through 

their agents, that:
 

consumers have won and wi1 receive a large cash award ifthey pay a lax 

or other fee; and 

the check consumers receive is a negotiable bank draft or check; 
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34. Therefore, Primar Defendants ' practices set forth in paragraph 33 violatc 

Section 31 O.3(a)(2)(v) of the TSR. 16 C. R. 9310.3(a)(2)(v). 

COUNT FOUR 

35. In numerous instances, in connection with telemarketing a prize promotion, 

Prmary Defendants have initiated, or have caused others to init1ate , an outbound telemarketing 

calI to persons ' telephone numbers 011 the National Do Not Call Registry. Primary Defendants 

have thereby violated Section 31 0.4(b)(1)(iii)(B) of the TSR, 16 C. 310A(b)(1)(iii)(B).R. 

COUNT FIVE 

36. In numerous instances, in connection with telemarketing a prize promotion. 

Assis6ng Defendants have provided substantial assistance or support to Prmar Defendants or 

their telcmarketers, who have made misrepresentations regarding material aspects of a prize 

pwmotion in violation of Section 31O.3(a)(2)(v) of the TSR, 16 C.F.R. 31O.3(a)(2)(v), by 

allowing Primary Defendants or thcir telemarketers to operate ftom the Assisting Defendants 

business premises and to use the Family Choice bank account to process consumers ' payments. 

37. Assisting Defendants know or consciously avoid knowing that Primary 

Defendants or their telemarketers make misrepresentations regarding material aspects of a prize 

promotion. 

38. In providing substantial support or assistance to sellers or tclemarketers while 

knowing or consciously avoiding knowing that the sellers or telcmarketer are engaged in 

making misrepresentations in violation of Section 31 0. 3(a)(2)(v) of the TSR, Assisting 

Defendants have violated Section 3 10.3 (b) of the TSR. 16 C. R. g 3l0. 3(b). 

CONSUMER INJURY 

39. Consumers throughout the United States have suffered and continue to suffer 

substantial monetary loss as a result of the defendants ' unlawful acts or practices. In addition, 

the defendants have been lmjustly enriched as a result of their unlawful practices. Absent 

injunclive reliefby thi:; Court, defendants are likely to continue to injure consumers, unjustly 

enrich themselves and haml the public interest. 
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THIS COURT'S POWER TO GRANT RELIEF 

40. Section 13 (b) of the FTC Act, 15 D. C. 9 53(b), empowers this Court to grant 

injunct1ve and such other relief as the Court may deem appropriate to halt and redress violations 

ofthe FTC Act. 

41. Section 19 of the FTC Act, 15 U. 57b, and Section 6(b) ofthee. 

Telemarketing Act, l5 U.S. C. 61 05(b), authorize this Cour to grant such reliefas the cour 

finds necessar to redress injury to consumers or other persons resulting from defendants 

violations of the TSR, including rescission and reformation of contracts and refund ofrnonies. 

42. The Court, in the exercise of its equitable jurisdiction, may award other ancHlar 

reliefincluding, but not limited to, rescission of contracts, restitution, and the disgorgcment of 

i1-gotten gains, to prevent and remedy injury caused by defendants ' law violations. 

PRAYER FOR RELIEF 

WHEREFORE, plaintiff the Fedcral Trade Commission, pursuant to Sections 13(b) and 

19 of the FTC Act, 15 U. 53(b) and 57b, Section 6(b) of the Telemarketing Act, 15c. 

c. * 61 05(b), and the Cour s own equhabJe power, requests that the Cour: 

Award Plaitiff such preliminar injunctive and aneilary relief as may be 

nceessary to avert the likelihood of consumer injury during the pendency of this 

action, and to preserve the possibilty of effeetive final relief, including, but not 

limited to) temporar and preliminary injunctions, and an order freezing assets 

Enter a permancnt injunction to prevent future violations of the FTC Act and the 

TSR by defendats;
 

A ward such relief as the COUli finds necessar to redress injury to consumers
 

resulting from the defendants ' violations of the FTC Act and the TSR, including 

hut not limited to, rescission or reformation of contracts, restitution, the refund of 

monies paid, and the disgorgerent of il-gotten monies; and 
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Award Plaitiff the costs ofbrin!:':ng this action, as well as such other and 

additional equitable relief as the Court may determine to be just and proper. 

2007Dated: 

Respeetfully Submitted, 

WILLIA BLUMENTHAL
 
General Cmmsel 

CHARES A. HAWOOD 
Regional Director
 

ec er 
Eleanor rham, Maryland Bar 
Âé¶¹´«Ã½ Trade Commission 
9 15 Second Ave., Suite 2896 
Seattle, W A 98174 
206 220..86 (Decker) 
206-220-4476 (Durham) 
206.220 6366 (fax) 
kdecker(gljftc.gov 
edurhamCtYftc.gOY 

Attorneys for Plaintiff Âé¶¹´«Ã½ Trade Commission 

2 I 
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